BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

VIERAN CORP., DBA DRUG CO.

PHARMACY; HASHEM HEIATI, PRESIDENT; PHUONG

DUNG NGUYEN, VICE PRESIDENT;
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 48533,

PHUONG DUNG NGUYEN
Pharmacist License No. RPH 50748,

ROHINEE AGARWAL
Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992,

and

HOWARD STANLEY WRIGHT,
Pharmacist License No, RPH 32151

Case No. 5739

Respondents.

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on October 14, 2016.

It is so ORDERED on September 14, 2016.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

A

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President




SO VE O |

L=~ B~ S

KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
ANTOINETTE B. CINCOTTA
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San Diege, CA 92101
P.O. Box 85266
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
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Facsimile: (619} 645.206!
Attormeys for Complainant
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IT15 HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-
entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

L. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy

| (Board). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by

Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Nicole R, Trama. Deputy

| Atforney General,

2. Vieran Corp., doing business as Drug Co. Pharmacy (Respondent Pharmacy) with
Hashem Heiati as President and Phuong Dung Nguyen as Vice President; Phuong Dung Nguyen
{Respondent Nguyen); Rohinee Agarwal {Respondent Agarwal) and Howard Stanley Wright
(Respondent Wright) are represented in this proceeding by attorney Ivan Petrzelka, Esq., whose
address is: 2855 Michelie Drive, Ste. 180, Irvine, CA 92606,

3. Onorabout April 26, 2007, the Board issued Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 48533 to
Respondent Pharmacy. The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at afl times relevant o
the ¢harges brought inn Accusation Ne. 5739, and will expire an April 1, 2017, unless renewed,

4. On or about March 29, 1999, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, RFH 30748 10

Respondent Nguyen. The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at all times relevant io

‘the charges brought in Accusation No. 5739, and will expire on July 31, 2018, unless renewed.

3. Onorabout March 14, 2012, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, RPH 66992 to
Respondent Agarwal. The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at all times relevant io
the charges brought in Accusation No. 5739, and will explre on May 31, 2017, unless renewed,

6. Onorabout Augost 3, 1978, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, RPH 32153 1o
Respondent Wright, The Pharmacist License was In full force and effect at all times relevant to
the charges brought in Accusation No. 5739, and will expire on March 31, 2018, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

7. Accusation No. 5739 was filed before the Board and is eurrently pending against
Respondents. The Accusation and all other statutorily requived doeuments were properly served

1
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| documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other

on Respondents on June 2, 2016. Respondents timely filed their Notices of Defense contesting
the Accusation.
8. Acopy of Accusation No, 5739 is attached as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by

reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

9. Respondents have carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understand the
charges and allegations in Accusation No, 5739, Respondents have also carefully read, fully
discussed with counsel, and understand the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order, |

10, Respondents are fully aware of their legal rights in this matter, including the rightto a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-examine
the witnesses against them; the right to present evidence and to testify on thetr own behalf the

right to the issuance of subpoenas te compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of

rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

1. Respondents voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waive and give up each and
every right set forth above.

CULPABILITY

12, Respondents understand and agree that the charges and allegations in Aceusation No.
No. 5739, ii proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing disciptine upon Pharmacy Permit
Number PHY 48533, Pharmacist License No, RPH 50748, Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992,
and Pharmacist License No, RPH 32151,

I3, For the purpose of resolving the Accusation without the expense and uncertainty of
further proceedings, Resparidents agree that, at a hearing, Complainant conld establish a factyal
basis for the charges in the Accusation, and that Respondents hereby give up the right to contest
those cherges.

I
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14, Respondents agree that its Pharmacy Permit and Pharmacist License are subject to
discipline and they agree to be bound by the Board's probationary terms a3 set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below.

13, Respondents agree that Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 48533, Pharmacist License
No, RPH 50748, Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992, and Pharmacist License No. RPH 3215]
are subject to diseipline and they agree to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth
in the Disciplinary Order below,

CONTINGENCY

[6.  This stipulation shall be subject fo approval by the Board. Respondents understand
and agree that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board may communicate directly with

the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice fo or participation by

Respondents or their counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondents understand and agree that

they may not withdraw its agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board
considers and acts upon it. Hf'the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order,
the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this
paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the Board shall not
be disqualified from further aotion by having considered this matter,

7. 'The parties understand and agree that Portable Doeument Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including PDF and facsimile
signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect a3 the originals.

18, This Stipulated Settlement and Disclplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement,

1t supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agfeements, understandings, discussions,

| negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary

Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except hye
writing executed by an authorized répresentative of each of the parties.

i
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19, in consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order;

BISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacy Permit No, PHY 48533 fssued to Respondent
Pharmacy, Pharmacist License No. RPH 50748 issued to Respondent Neuyen, Pharmacist
License No. RPH 66992 issued to Respondent Agarwal, and Pharmacist License No. RPH 32151
issued to éespondem Wright are revoked, However, the revocations are stayed and Respondents
are placed on probation for thirty (30) months on the following terms and conditions.

1. Obey All Laws

Respondents shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations.

Respondents shall report any of the following occurrences to the Board, in writing, within
seventy-two (72) hours of such oceurrence:
an arrest or issuance of a ctiminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws
s ples of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal eriminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or indictment
a conviction of any crime
discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency
which invoives Respondents” license or which is related to the practice of pharmacy
or the manufechiring, obtaining, handling or distributing, billing, or charging for Bay
drug, device or confrolled substance,

Failure to timely report any such oecurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.

2, Report to the Board

Respondents shall report to the Board guarterly, on a schedule as directed by the Board or
its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among other
requirements, Respondents shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there has

3
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been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Fallure to submit timely reports
in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period{s) of delinquency
in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation, Moreover, if
the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be automaticatly extended until
such time as the final report is made and sccepted by the Board.

3. Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondents shall appear in person for interviews
with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and focations as are determined by the Board or
its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to Board
staff, or failure to appear for twe (2) or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its designes
during the perlod of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation,

4, Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondents shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the Board's
monitoring and investigation of Respondents’ compliance with the terms and conditions of their
probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation,

3. Reimbursement of Board Cosis

As g condition precedent to successtul completion of probation, Respondents shall pay to
the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the amount of $2,268.00. Within sixty (60)
days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondents shall pay the costs as follows:
Respondent Pharmacy shall pay costs In the amount of $1,587.60, Respondent Nguyen shall pay
costs in the amount of $226,80, Respondent Agarwal shall pay costs in the amount of §226,80,
and Respondent Wright shall pay costs in the amount of $226.80. There shall be no deviation
from this schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee. Failure 1o pay qosts
by the deadiine(s) as directed shall be considersd a violation of probation,

The filing of bankruptcy by Respondents shall not relieve Respondents of their
responsibility to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution.
1#
i
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6. Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondents shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the
Board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the Board on a schedule
as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed
shall be considered a violation of probation,

7. Status of License

Respondent Pharmacy shall, at all times while on probation, maintain current censure with
the Board, If Respondent Pharmacy’s owner submits an application to the Board, and the
application is approved, for a change of location, change of permit or change of ownership, the
Board shall retain continuing jurisdiction aver the license, and Respondent Pharmacy shall remain
on probation as determined by the Board. Failure to maintain current licensure shall be
considered a violation of probation.

Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shall, at all times while on probation, maintain a
active, current liconses with the Bodrd, including any period duririg which suspension or
probation is foited. Failure to maintain an active, current license shall be considered 2 violation
of probation.

If Respondents’ licenses expire or are cancelled by operation of law or otherwise at any
time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to-tolling or otherwise,
upon renewal or reapplication Respondents’ licenses shall be subject to all terms and conditions of]
this probation not previously satisfied.

8. License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Foltowing the effective date of this decision, should Respondent Pharmacy discontinue
business, Respondent Pharmacy may tender the premises license to the Board for surrender.
Pollowing the effective date of this decision, should Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright
cease practice due to retirement ot health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the termis and
conditions of probation, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright may tender their licenses to
the Board for surrender. The Board or its designee shall have the diseretion whether o gran the
request for surrender or take any other action it deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal

7
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| Business form according to Board guidelines and shall notify the Board of the records inventery

| as may be necessary in the transfer of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five

| days of its provision to the pharmacy’s ongoing patients, Respondent Pharmacy shall provide 4

acceptance of the surrender of the license, Respondents will no longer be subject to the terms and
conditions of probation. This surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shali become & part
of the Respondents® license history with the Board.

Upoen acceptance of the surrender, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwat and Wright shall
relinquish their pocket and wall license to the Board within ten (10) days of notification by the
Board that the surrender is accepted,

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent Pharmacy shall relinquish the premises wall
and rencwal license to the Board within ten (10) days of notificition by the Board that the

surrender i accepted. Respendent Pharmacy shall further submit a completed Discontinuance of

transfer.

Respondent Pharmacy shall also, by the effective date of this decision, arrange for the
continuation of care for engoing patients of the pharmacy by, at minimurn, providing a written
notice to ongoing patients that specifies the anticipated closing date of the pharmacy and that

identifies one or more area pharmacies capable of taking up the patients' care, and by cooperatin
p g

copy of the written notice to the Board. For the purposes of this provision, "ongoing patients”
means those patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a preseription with anc or more refills
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled a prescription within the preceding sixty (60)
days.

Respondents may not apply for any new licensure from the Board for three (3) years from
the effective date of the surrender. Respondents shall ineet all requirements applicable to the
license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to the Board,

Respondents shall reimburse the Board for Its costs of investigation and prosecution nrior to.
the acceptance of the surrender.
i |
I
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9. Notice to Employees

Respondent Pharmacy shail, upon or before the effective date of this Decision, ensure that
all employees involved in permit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions of
probation, either by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, cireulating such notice, or both,
If the notice required by this provision is posted, it shall be posted in a prominent place and shall

remain posted throughout the probation period. Respondent Pharmacy shall ensure that any

| employees hired or used after the effective date of this Decision are made aware of the terms and

conditions of probation by posting a notice, cireulating a notice, or both, Additionally,
Respondent Pharmacy shall submit written notification to the Board, within fifteen (15) days of
the effective date of this Decision, that this term has been satisfied. Failure to submit such
notification to the Board shal} be considered a violation of probation,
"Employees” as used in this provision includes alf full-time, part-time,

volunteer, temporary and relief employees and %x{cfs:pf:ndeni contractors employed or

hired at any time during probation.

10, Owners and Officers: Knowledge of the Law

Respondent Pharmacy shall provide, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this
Decision, signed and dated statements from its owners, including any owner or holder of fen
percent (10%) or more of the interest in Respondent or Respondent Pharmiacy's stock, aﬁd any
officer, stating under penalty of periury that said individuals have read§ and are familiar with state
and federal laws and r_ﬁgutaﬁons governing the practice of pharmacy. The failure to timely
provide said statements vnder penalty of perjury shall be considered a violation of probation,

11, Posted Netice of Probation

Respondent Pharmacy shall prominently post a probation notice provided by the Board in a
place conspicuous and readable to.ﬂ'ir: public, The probation notice shall remain posted during
the entire period of probation.

Respondent Pharmacy shall not, divectly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or make any
statement which is intended to mislead or is likely 1o have the effect of misleading any patient,
custormer, member of the public, or other person(s} as to the nature of and reagon for the probation

9
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of the licensed entity.

Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of probation.

12, Violation of Prohation

If Respondents have not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board shall
have continuing jurisdiction over Respondents’ license, and probation shalf be automatically
extended until alf terms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other action as
deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, 1o ferminate
probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If Respondents violate probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondents notice -
and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the diseiplinary order that

was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating that a;

| viclation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of the Heense, [f

a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against respondent during probation, the
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of proba:fion shall be automatically
extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.

13, Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the Board or its designee Indicating successful completion of
probation, Respondents® license wil? be fully restored.

b4, Report of Compounded Medications

Respondent Pharmacy shall submit quarterly reports to the Board detailing the medications
compounded l;y Respondent Pharmacy, as directed by the Board or its designee, The report shall
be delivered or malled to the Board no later than ten (10) days following the end of the reporting
period. Failure to timely prepare or submit such reports shall be considered a violation of
probation.

15, Continuing Education

Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shall provide evidence of efforts to maimain
skilf and knowledge as a pharmacist as directed by the Board or its designee.
i

ig
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16, Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shall notfy all
present and prospective employers of the Decision in case number 5739 and the terms, conditions
and restrictions imposed on respondent by the decision, as follows:

Within thirty (30} days of the effective date of this Decision, and within fifieen (15) days of
Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright undertaking any new employment, Respondents
Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shail cause their direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge (including
each new pharmacisi-in-charge employed during respondent’s tenure of employment) and owner
to report to the Board in writing acknnwledging that the listed individual(s) has/have read the
Decision in case number 5739, and terms and conditions imposed thereby, It shall be
Respondents Nguyen, Aganwval and Wright's responsibility to ensure that their employer(s) and/or
supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgmeni(s) o the Board.

If Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright work for or is employed by or through a
pharmacy employment service, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright must notify their
direct superviser, pharmacist-in-charge, and owner at every entity licensed by the Board of the
terms and conditions of the decision in case number 5739 in advance of the Respondents Nguyen,
Agarwel and Wright commencing work at each licensed entity, A record of this notification must
be provided to the Board ufmn request,

Furthermore, within thirty (30} days of the effective dute of this Decision, and within fifteen
(13) days of Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright undertaking any new employment by or
through & pharmacy employment service, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shall cause
their direct supervisor with the pharmacy employment service to report to the Board in writing
acknowledging that they has read the Decision in case number 5739 and the terms and conditions
imposed thereby., It shall be Respondent Nguven, Agarwal and Wright’s responsibility to ensure
that their employer{s) andfor supervisor(s) submit imely acknowledgmeni{s) to the Board.

Failure to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) or to cause that/those
employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the Board shall be considered a violation of

probation,

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (5739)
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"Employment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,
part-time, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any
position for which a pharmacist license is & requirement or eriterion for employment,
whether the respondent is an employee, independent contractor or volunteer,

17. No Supervision of Interns, Serving as Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC), Serving as
Designated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant

During the period of probation, Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shafl not
supervise any intern pharmacist, be the pharmacist-in-charge or designated representative-in-
charge of any entity licensed by the Board nor serve as a consultant unless otherwise specified in

this order. Assumption of'any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considered

a violation of probation.

18, Notifleation of 2 Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment

Respondents Nguyen, Agarwat and Wright shall notify the Board in writing within ten (10)
days of any change of employment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the
address of the new employer, the name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if
known. Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shalt further notify the Board in writing
within ten {10} days of a change in name, residence address, mailing address, or phone number.

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es), or
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation,

19, Tolling of Probation

Except during periods of suspension, Respondent Nguyen shall, at all times while on

probation, be employed as a'phaﬁnacést in California for a minimum of forty (40) hours per

- calendar month, Any month during which thig minimom is not met shall toll the period of

probation, L., the period of probation shall be extended by one month for each month during
which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondent
Nguyen must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation,
i

12
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Should Respondent Nguyen, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation)
cease practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of forty (40) howrs per calendar month in
Ca}ifbrnia, Respondent Nguyen must notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the
cessation of practice, and must further notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the
resumption of practice. Any failure to provide such notification(s) shatl be considered a violation
of probation.

It is a violation of probation for Respondent Nguyen's probation to remain tolled pursuant
te the provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive
months, exceeding thirty-six (36) months,

"Cessation of practice” means any calendar month during which Respondent

Nguyen is not practicing as a pharmacist for at least forty (40) hours, as defined by

Business and Professions Code section 4000 et seq . "Resumption of practice” means

“any calendar month during which Respondent Nguyen Is praeticing as a pharmacist

for at teast forty (40) hours as a pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions

Code section 4000 et seq,

Except during perfods of suspension, Respondents Agarwal and Wright shall, at all times
while on probation, be employed as a pharmacist in California for a minimum of thirty-two (32)
hours per calendar month. Any month during which this minimum is not met shall tolt the period
of probation, i.e., the period of probation shall be extended by one month for each month during
which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondents
Agarwal and Wright must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation,

Should Respondents Agarwal and Wright, regardless of residency, for any reasen
(including vacation) cease practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of thirty-two (32 hours per
calendar month in California, Respondents Agarwal and Wright must notify the Board in writing
within ten (10) days of the cessation of practice, and must further notify the Board in writing
within ten (10) days of the resumption of practice. Any failure to provide such notification{s)

shakl be considered a violation of probation,

v
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Itis a violation of probation for Respondents Agarwal and Wright's probation to remain
tolled pursuent to the provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and
non-consecutive months, exceeding thirty-six (36) months.

"Cessation of practice” means any calendar month during which Respondents

Agarwal and Wright's are not practicing as a pharmacist for at least thirty-two (32)

hours, as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et seq .

"Resumption ¢l practice” means any calendar month during which Respondents

Agarwal and Wright are practicing as a pharmacist for at least thirty-two (32) hours

as a pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et seq.

20, Ethics Course

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondents Nguyen,

Apgarwal and Wright shall enroll in & course in ethics, at Respondents’ expense, approved in

- advance by the Board or its designee. Failure to initiate the course during the first year of

probation, and complete it within the second year of probation, is a violation of probation. The
ethies course shall be in addition to, and shall not be credited toward, continuing education (CE)
courses used for license renewal purposes.

Respondents Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright shall submit a certificate of completion to the
Board or its designee within five days after campleting the course.

21, Remedial Eduveation

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Wright shall
submit to the Board or 1ts designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of remedial
education related fo compounding and FDA regulations, The program of remedial education
shall consist of at least twelve (12) hours, which shall be completed during the first year of
probation at Respondent Wright's own expense. All remedial education shall be in addition to,
and shall not be c‘reéémd toward, continuing education (CE) courses used for Heense renewal
purposes.

Failure to timely submit or complete the approved remedial education shall be considered a
yiolation of probatlon. The period of probation will be automatically extended until such

14
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remedial education is successtully completed and written proof, in a form acceptable to the

Board, is provided to the Board or its designee.

Following the completion of each course, the Board or its designee may require

Respondent Wright, at his own expense, 1o take an approved examination to test Respondent

Wright's knowledge of the course. IfRespondent Wright does not achieve a passing score on the

| examination, this failure shall be considered a violation of probation. Any such examination

failure shall require Respondent Wright to take another course approved by the Board in the same
subjeét area.
22, Consultant for Owner or Pharmacist-In-Charge

During the period of probation, Respondent Nguyen shall not supervise any intern

| pharmacist or serve as a consultant (0 any entity licensed by the Board. Respondent Nguyen may

be the pharmacist-in-charge of Respondent Pharmacy. However, if during the periad of probation

Respondent Nguyen sefves as a pharmacist-in-charge, Respondent Nguyen shall retain an

independent consultant who specializes in compounding, at Respondent Nguyen's own expense,
who shall be responsible for reviewing pharmacy operations on a monthly basis for compliance
by Respondent Nguyen with state and federal laws and regulations governing the practice of
pharmacy and for compliance by Respondent Nguyen the obligations of pharmacist-in-charge,
The cansultant shall be a pharmaeist licensed by and not on probation with the Board and whose
name shall be submilted to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, within thirty (30) days of

the effective date of this Decision, Respondent Nguyen shall not be a pharmacist-in-charge at

|| more than one pharmacy. Failure to timely retain, seek approval of, or ensure timely reporting by

the consultant shall be considered a violation of probation.
i
it
i
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ACCEPTANCE
Ehave carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, lvan Petrzelks, Bsq. 1 undersiand the stipulation and the effect it
will have on Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 48533, Pharmacist License No, RPH 50748,
Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992, and Pharmacist License No. RFH 32{5t, T enter into this

Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree

to be beund by the Decision and Order of the Bi.gi BU;;{ %
DATED: %i\g L,

HASHE IDENT AND

AUTH{} ZED AG T ON BEHALF OF VIERAN
CORP., DBA DRUG CO. PHARMACY
Respondent

DATED: ‘%'41 1‘3{ W

pATED: ¥ f‘il.({»

.

Revpmrdgm

1 have read and fully discussed with Respondents the terms and conditions and other

matters contained in Iht} above Stipulated Setlement and Disciplinary Order. Tapprove its form

B and content, "A‘
DATED: M i,29(¢ (fé- /z{-—'

VAN PEIRZELKA, ESQ
Alteriey for Regponderts

i
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The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.

Dated: ﬁﬂjw* /0 2076

D21 6800236
Bld21553.doe

ENDRORSEMENT

i7

Respectfully submitted,

KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
ANTOINETTE B, CINCOTTA
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NICOLE R. TRAMA
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complatnant

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (573§)
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KamaLa D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
ANTOINETTE B, CINCOTTA
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
NICOLE R. TRAMA
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 263607
600 West Broadway, Suite 1800
San Diego, CA 92101
P.O. Box 85266
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: {619} 645-2143
Facsimile: (019) 645-2061
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
| BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

VIERAN CORP,,

DBA DRUG CO. PEARMACY;
HASHEM HEIATIL, PRESIDENT;
PHUONG DUNG NGUYEN, VICE P
307 North Ash Street

Escondido, CA 92027

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 48533
PHUQONG DUNG NGUYEN

13596 Penfield Point

San Diego, CA 92130

Pharmacist License No. RPH 50748

ROHINEE AGARWAL
13227 Jacarte Court

2 | San Diego, CA 92130

Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992

ared

HOWARD STANLEY WRIGHT

620 Dorinda Drive
Oceanside, CA 92087

Pharmacist License Wo. RPH 32151

RESIDENT

Respondents,

Case No. 5739

ACCUSATION
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Complainant alleges:

PARTIES

{,  Virginia Flerold {Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her officlal capacity
a5 the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs (Board).

2. Onor about April 26, 2007, the Board issued Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 48533
to Vieran Corp., to do business as Drug Co, Pharmacy (Respondent Pharmacy), with Hashem
Hetati as President and Phuong Dung Nguyen as Vice President. The Pharmacy Permit was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought berein, and will expire on April |,
2016, unless renewexd,

3, QOnor abgui March 29, 1599, the Board issued Pharmacist License No. RPH 50748 w0

Phuong Dung Nguyen (Respondent Nguyen). The Pharmacist License was in full force and

effect at all times relevant fo the charges brought herein, and will expire on July 31,2018, unless

renewed.

4. Onor about March 14, 2012, the Board issued Pharmacist License No. RPH 66992 to
Rohinee Agarwal (Respondent Agarwal). The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at
all times relevant to the charges biought herein, and will expire on May 31, 2017, unless renewad..

5. Onor about August 3, 1978, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, RPH 32151 o
Howard Stanley Wright (Respondent Wright). The Pharmacist License was in full foree and
offect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein, and will expire on March 31, 2018,
unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

6. This Accusation is brought before the Board, under the authority of the following
laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated,

7. Seotion 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforee both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Cade, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

8. Section 4300(z) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be

suspended or revoked.
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9, Section 43001 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license
by aperation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the
placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render
a decision suspending or revoking the license.

10, Section 4307(a) of the Code states:

{a) Any person who has been denjed a license or whose license has been
revoked or is under suspension, or who has failed to renew his or her lcense while
it was under suspension, or who has been a manager, administrator, owner,
member, officer, director, associate, or partner of any partnership, corporation,
firm, or associstion whose application for a license has been denied or revoked, is
under suspension or has been placed on probation, and while acting as the
manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director, assoctate, or partner had
knowiedge of or knowingly participated in any conduct for which the license was
denied, revoked, suspended, or placed on probation, shall be prohibited from
serving as a managet, administrator, owner, member, officer, direcior, associate, or
pariner of a licensee as follows:

(1) Where a probationary lcense is issued or where an existing licenss is
placed on probation, this prohibition shall remain in effect for a period not to
exceed five vears. ‘

(2) Where the license is denied or revoked, the prohibition shall continue
until the license is issued of reinstated.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

1. Section 4013{a) of the Code states:

Any facility licensed by the board shall join the board’s e-mail notification list

within 60 days of obtaining a license or at the time of license renswal.

12, Section 4059(by of the Code states:

A pharmacist mdy furnish a dangerous drug authorized for use pursuant to
Section 2620.3 to a physical therapist. A record containing the date, name and
address of the buyer, and name and quantity of the drug shall be maintained. This
subdivision shall not be construed to authorize the furnishing of a controted
substance.

13 section 4059 5(e) of the Code states:

A dangerous drug or dangerous device shall not be transferred, sold, or
delivered to a person outside this state, whether foreign or domestic, unless the
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transfetor, selier, or deliverer does so in compliance with the faws of this state and
of the United States and of the state or country to which the dangerous drugs or
dangerous devices are to be transferred, sold, or delivered. Compliance with the
laws of this state and the United States and of the state or country to which the
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices are to be delivered shall include, but not be
limited to, determining that the recipient of the dangerous drugs or dangerous
devices is authorized by law to receive the dangerous drugs or dangerous devices,

14, Section 4081 of the Code states:

{a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, receipt, shipment, or
disposition of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during
business hours open to inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be
preserved for at least three years from the date of making. A current inventory
shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, third-party logistics provider,
pharmacy, veterinary food-animal drug retailer, physiclan, dentist, podiatrist,
veterinarian, laboratory, clinie, hospital, institution, or establishment holding a
currently valid and vnrevoked certificate, Hcense, permit, registration, or
exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the Health and
Safety Code or under Part 4 (cornmencing with Section 16000) of Division 9 of
the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or
dangerous devices.

{b) The owner, officer, and partner of a phatmacy, wholesaler, third-party
logistiés provider, or veterinary fhod-animal drug retailer shall be jointly
responsible, with the pharmacist-in-charge, responsible manager, or designated
representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in
this section.

{¢) The pharmacist-in-charge, responsible manager, or designated
representative-in-charge shall not be criminally responsible Tor acts of the owner,
officer, partner, or employee that violate this section and of which the pharmacist-
in-charge, responsible manager, or designated representative-in-charge had no
knowledge, or in which he or she did not knowingly participate.

15, Section 4113, subdivision () of the Code provides that the pharmacist-in-charge

shall be respansibie for a pharmacy’s compiiance with all state and federal laws and regulations

pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.

16. Section 4126.5(2)(4) of the Code states:

(a) A pharmacy may furnish dangerous drugs only fo the following:

{4y Another pharmacy or whelesaler ta alleviate a ternporary shortage of a
dangerous drug that could result in the denial of health care. A pharmacy
furnishing dangerous drugs pursuant to this paragraph may only furnish a quantity
sufficient to alleviate the temporary shortage.

4
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17 Section 4169 of the Code states:
() A person or entity shall not do any of the following:

(1) Purchase, trade, sell, warehouse, distribute, or transfer dangerous drugs
or dangerous devices at wholesale with a person or entity that is not licensed with
the board as a wholesaler, third-party logistics provider, or pharmacy.

(23 Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or
reasonably should have known were adulterated, as set forth in Article 2 ‘
{(commencing with Section 111250] of Chapter 6 of Part 5 of Division 104 of the
Health and Safety Code, 1

(3) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or
reasonably should have known were misbranded, as defined in Section 111335 of
the Health and Safety Code.

(4) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices
after the beyond use date on the label.

(5) Fail to matntain records of the acquisition or disposition of dangerous
drugs or dangerous devices for at lenst three years.

(b} Notwithstanding any other law, a violation of this section may subject
the person or entity that has committed the violation to a fine niot to exceed the
amount spesified in Section 125.9 for each oceurrence, pursuant 1o a citation
issued by the board,

(¢) Amounts due from any person under this section shall be offset as
provided under Section 1241%.5 of the Government Code. Amounts received by
the board under this section shall be deposited into the Pharmacy Board
Contingerit Fund,

(dy This sectien shall not apply to a pharmaceutical manufacturer licensed by
the Food and Drug Administeation or by the State Department of Public Health.

18, Section 4301 of the Code states in pertinent part:

The hoard shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall inelude, but
is not limited to, any of the following:

(i) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of
the United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.
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(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indivectly, o assisting in or
abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this
chapter or of the applicable federa! and state laws and regulations governing
pharmacy, including regulations cstablished by the board or by any other state or
federal regulatory agency,

19. Health and Safety Code section 111335 provides that any drug or device is
misbranded if its labe[ing or packaging does not conform to the requirements of Chapter 4
{commencing with Section 110290.)

20, Health and Safety Code section 111400 provides that any drug or device is
risbranded if it is dangerous to health when used In the dosage, or with the frequency or duration
prescribed, recommended, or suggested in its labeling.

21, Health and Safety Code section 111440 provides that it is unlawful for any person to
manufacture, sell, deliver, hold, or offer for sale any drug or device that is misbranded.

29, Health and Safety Code section 111450 provides that it is unlawful for any person to
regeive in commerce any drug or device that is misbranded or to deliver or proffer for del ivery
any drug or device.

23, Title 21 United States Code section 352 states:

A Drug or device shall be deemed to be misbranded—

(f) Directions for use and warnings on label

Unless its labeling bears (1) adequate directions for use; and (2) such adequate
warnings against use in those pathological conditions or by children where is use
may be dangerous to health, or against unsafe dosage or methods or duration of
administration or application, in such manner and form, as are necessary for the
protection of users, except that where any reguirement of clause (1) of this paragraph,
as apgﬂed to any drug or device, 1§ hot necessary for the protection of the public
health, the Secretary shall promulgate regulations exempting such drug or device
from such requitement. Requited labeling for presoription devices infended for use in
health care facilities or by a health care professional and requiired labeling for in vitro
diagnostic devices intended solely by electronic means, provided that the labeling
complies with all applicable requirements of law, -and that the manufacturer affords
such users the opportunity to request the labeling in paper form, and after such
request, promptly provides the requested information without additional cost. |

1
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REGULATORY PROVISIONS

24,  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735, subdivision {a):

states in pertinent part:

“Compounding” mearns any of the following activates ocourring ina
licensed pharmacy. by or under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist, pursuant to
a prescription:

(1) Altering the dosage form or delivery system of a drug
(2) Altering the strength of a drug
{(3) Combining components or active ingredients

{4y Preparing a drug product from chemicals or bulk drug substances

25, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735 states:

(a) *Compounding” means any of the following activities oceurring ina
licensed pharmacy, by or under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist, pursnant
P P _
fo 8 prescriplion:

(1) Altering the dosage form or delivery system of a drug
(2) Altering the strength of a drug

(3} Combining components or active ingredients

s

(4) Preparing a drug product from chemicals or bulk drug substances

(b) “Compounding” does not include reconstitution of a drug pursuant to 2
manufacturet's direction(s) for oral, rectal toplcal, or injectable administration, nor
does it include tablet splitting or the addition of flavoring agent(s) to enhance
palatability. '

(6) “Compounding” does not include, except it small guartities under
limited circumstances as justified by a specific, documented, medical need,
preperation of a compounded drug product that is commercially available in the
marketplace or that is essentially a copy of a drug product that is commerciaily
available in the marketplace.

(dy The parameters and tequirements stated by this Article 4.5 (Section 1735
et seq.) apply to all compounding practices, Additional parameters and
requirements applicabie solely 1o sterile injectable cornpounding are stated by
Article 7 (Section 1751 et seq.).

ACCUSATION




L R i e s T Y T oN

e I e O T O

20

22

23

24
25
26

2
o0

26.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2 states:

{d) A drug product shall not be compounded until the pharmacy has first
prepared 2 written master formula record that includes at least the following
elements:

(1) Active ingredients to be used.

(2) Equipment to be used.

(3) Expiration dating requirernents.

(4) Inactive ingredients to be used.

(5) Process and/or procedure used to prepare the drug.

(6) Quality reviews required at each step in preparation of the drug.

(1) Post-compounding process or procedures required, if any.

(1) Every compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date
representing the date beyond which, in the professional judgment of the
pharmacist performing or supervising the compounding, it should not be used.
This “beyond use date™ of the compounded drug product shall not exceed 180 days
from preparation or the shortest expiration date of any component in the
corpounded drug product, unless a longer date is supported by stability studies of
finished drugs or compounded drug products using the same components and
packaging. Shorter dating than set forth in this subsection may be used if it is
deemed appropriate in the professional judgment of the responsible pharmacist.

(i¥ The pharmacist perfornting or supervising compounding is responsible

for the proper preparation, labeling, storage, and delivery of the compounded drug
product.

COST RECOVERY
27, Section 125.3 of the Code provides, ini pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administr_;zt_ive taw judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing sct to pay a sum nol to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

i
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DRUG

28. Domperidone is & drug not approved for use in humans in the United States by the
Food and Drug Administeation. Drug produets compounded using domperiodone are subject to
the approval requirements of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, ‘

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

29, Since April 26, 2007, and at all times mentioned herein, Respondent Nguyen has been
the Pharmacist-in-Charge (P1C) of Respondent Pharmacy. Respondent Agarwal and Respondent
Wright are staff pharmacists at Respondent Pharmacy.

30, On June 7, 2004, the FDA issued a talk paper titled, “FDA Warns Against Women
Using Unapptoved Drug, Domperidone, to Increase Milk Production.” The paper stated in
pertinent part that domperidone is an “unapproved drug,” and that it is “not approved in the U.S.

for any indication.” It also warned breast-feeding women not to use the product because of safety

' congerns, and that FDA field personne! were alerted to be on the lookout for attempts to import

domperidone so it could be detained. The talk paper indicated that the FDA issued six letters to
pharmacies that compound products conlaining domperidone and firms that supply domperidone
for use in compounding. The paper stated, “[the letters lssued by FDA today stated that all drug
products containing domperidone (whether sompounded or not) violate the Federal Food, Drug,
and Cosmetic Act (the Ac¢t) because they are unapproved new drugs and misbranded. In addition,
distribution within the U.S,, or importation of dompeﬁdone&aﬂtaining products, violates the
law.”

31, OpMarch 18, 2011, the FDA issued an import alert for domperidone indicating the
agency feamed domperidone was being imported as 2 bulk active pharmaceutical ingredient for
pharmacy compounding, and presented & public healih risk and violated the Act.

22, On Mareh 12, 2012, the FDA issued a revised impaort alert fﬁ}: dompetidone, This
revised import alert stated that *. . . domperidone is not appropriate for pharmacy tompounding

use because this bulk active ingredient is not a component of an EDA approved drug, oris a

componetit of a drug that was withdrawn or removed from the market for safety reasons.”

i
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33.  On or about April 14, 2015, the Board issued a “subscriber alert” to pharmacics and
pharmacisis stating, “Domperidone is not FDA-approved for any use in humans in the United
States. Drug products compounded using domperidone are subject to the approval requirements
of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.™

34, Respondents did not possess a FDA-approved Investigational New Drug application,

- allowing them expanded access for domperiodone.

35.  Between April 21,2015 and June 5, 2015, Respondents compounded and dispensed
fourteen prescriptions for domperidone, Of the fourteen prescriptions dispensed for
domperidone, ten prescriptions for domperidone were compounded without first preparing the
required written master formula, and eleven preseriptions for domperidone were assigned a

bevond-use-date (BUD) that was greater than 180 days from the compounded date, as follows:

Date Lot/RX | Strength | Amount | BUD Veritying | Findings
# compounded | RPH
442172005 297274 | 10mg | 100 10/2015 Agarwal | BUD > 180 day
42772015 1292778 | 10me | 100 1072015 Nguyenn | BUD > 180 day
41642085 1 297130 | 30mg 100 10/2015 Wright BUD > 180 day,
No master formula
for 30 mg
4/29/2015 1 297546 | 30mg | 100 10/2015 Nguyen | BUD > 180 day;
No master formula
for 3G mg
S/7/2015 12678388 | 10mg |30 10/2015 Nguyen
5/18/2015 1 298252 | 20 mg | 100 8/15/11/15 | Agarwal | BUD unciea;
: No master formula
for 20 me
5/18/2015 1 298304 | 20 mg | 200 1172015 Agarwal | BUD > 180 day;
" No master formula
for 20 mg
51512015 1597785 | 3Gmg | 100 11/2015 Agarwal { BUD > 180 day;
No master formula
_ _ for 30 mg
S/8/5015 | 297939 { 30mg 190 1172015 MNeguyen | BUD > 180 day;
No master formula
_ for 30 mp
5/12/2015 | 297130 | 30mg | 100 1172015 | Agarwal | BUD > 180 day;
No master formula
for 30 mg
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52112015 | 298407 | 30mg | 90 112015 | Nguyen |BUD> (80 day;
Mo master formuia
_ : for 30 mg
5/28/2015 | 298583 | 30mg | 100 1172015 Wright | BUD > 180 day;
No master formulz
_ for 30 mg '
6/1/2015 | 297546 | 30mg |90 1172015 Wright No master formula
: for 30 mg
6/5/2015 | 297785 | 30mg | 90 12/15 Wright BUD > 180 day;
| No master formula
for 30 mg

3f.  Respondent Nguyen informed the inspector that she investigated domperidone in
May, 2015 and discovered it was illegal in the United States. Respondent Nguyen stated that
Respondent Pharmacy stopped filling domperidone preseriptions on June 4, 2015,

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Against Respondents Drug Co. Pharmacy, Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright)
(Sold Misbranded Drugs)

37. Respondents are subject to diseipl.inary action under Code section 4301(j) for

' Viélating statutes regulating controlied substances and dangerous drugs, in that Respondents soid

misbranded drugs, as defined by Health & Safety Code section 111400 and United States Code,
title 21, section 352(F) in violation of Health and Safety Code section 111440, as set forth in
paragraphs 29 through 36, which are incm‘j?araied herein by reference.
SECOND CAUSE FOﬁ DISCIPLINE
{Against Respondenis Drug Co. Pharmacy, Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright)
(Delivered or Proffered for Delivery Misbranded Drugs)
38. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(), for

violating statutes fegulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs, in that Respondents

- delivered or proffered for delivery misbranded drugs, as defined by Health & Safety Code section

1] ié-ﬂﬁ, in violetion of Health and Safety Code section 111450, as set forth in paragraphs 29
through 36, which are incorporated herein by reference,

1
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Against Respondents Drug Co. Pharmacy, Ngnyen, Agarwal and Wright)
(Comunission of Prohibited Acts)

39. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 4301(0) and/or
4169(a)(3), and Health and Safety Code section 11335, in that Respondents purchased
domperidonfe powder and dispensed compounded drug capsules containing domperidone without
having an approved Investigational New Drug application on file, as set forth in paragraphs 29
through 36, which are incorporated herein by reference.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Against Respondents Drug Co. Pharmacy, Nguyen, Agarwal and Wright)
(Unprofessional Conduct)

40, Respoendents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301 for
unprofessional conduct in that they engaged in the activities described in paragraphs 29 through
36 sbove, which are incorporated herein by reference,

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Against Respondents Drug Co. Pharmacy and Nguven)
(Failure to Prepare Written Master Formula)

41. Respondents are subject to-disciplinary action under Code section 4301(c) for
violating California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2(d), by compounding
domperidone on ten oecasions without first preparing the a written master formula gs described in
paragraphs 29 through 36 above, which are incorporated herein by reference.

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Against Respondents Drug Co. Pharmacy and Nguyen)
{(Unlawful Extension of the BUD)

42, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(o) for
violating California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 17335.2(d), by assigning a bevond use
date that was greater than 180 days from the compounded date as described in paragraphs 29
through 36 above, which are incorporated herein by reference.
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ACCUSATION




WoN

LA

I
12

134

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28

Lo R« e Y

DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

43, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent
Pharmacy, Complainant alleges that on or about November 9, 2015, the Roard issued Modified
Citation number CI 2011 48851 and a fine against Respondent Pharmacy for violating Business
and Professions Code sections 4126.5{(a)(4), 4059(b), 4301{0), 4081(a), 4059.5{¢) and California
Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718. The fine has been paid in full.

44, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Nguyen,
Complainant alleges that on or about September 4, 2015, Citation number CT 2012 53976 became
final against Respondent Nguyen. The Citation alleged that Respondent Nguyen violated
Business and Professions Code sections 4126.5(a)(4), 4059(b), 4301(o), 4081(z), 4059.5(¢) and
California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718,

OTHER MATTERS

45, Pursuant to Code section 4307, if discipline is imposed on Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 48533 issued to Vieran Corp., dba Drug Co. Pharmacy, and Hashem Heiati and/or Phuong
Dung Ngliyen, while acting as the manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director,
associate, or partner of Vieran Corp., dba Drug Co, Pharmacy, had knowledge of or knowingly

participated in any conduct for which Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 48533 issued to Vieran

Corp., dba Drug Co. Pharmacy was revoked, suspended or placed on probation, Hashem Helati

“and/or Phuong Dung Nguyen shall be prohibited from serving as a manager, administrator,

owner, member, officer, director, assoociate, or partner of a licenses for five years if Pharmacy
Permit Number PHY 48533 issued to Vieran Corp., dba Drug Co. Pharmacy is placed on
probation or until Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 48533 issued to Vieran Corp,, dba Drug Co.
Pharmacy is reinstated if it is revoked.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the ma't’teré herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspencling Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 483533 issued to Vieran
Corp., to do business as Drug Co. Pharmacy,

i3
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2. Revcking or suspending Pharmacist License No. RPH 50748 issued to Phuong Dung
Nguyen.

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License RPH 66992 issued to Rohinee Agarwal.

4, Revckinrg or suspending Pharmacist License No. RPH 32151 issued to Howard
Stanley Wright.

5. Ordering Respondents to pay the Board of Pharrnacy the reasonable costs of the

| investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section

125.3;

6. Prohibiting Respondents Hashem Heiati and/er Phuong Dung Nguyen from serving

as & manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director, associate or pariner of a licensee

for a period not to exceed five years in the case of probation, or in the case of revocation, until the

- license is reinstated,

7. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper..

541

DATED:

VIRGTINIA HEROLD

Executive Officer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of Califorpia

Complainant
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